
 

 

ADDENDUM #1 

September 10, 2025 

Economic Development & Industrial Corporation of Lynn (EDIC/Lynn) 

3 City Hall Square – Room 405 

Lynn, MA 01901 

FORMER WHYTE’S LAUNDRY 

BROWNFIELDS REMEDIAL INJECTIONS AND PERMEABLE REACTIVE 
BARRIER (PRB) 

Project Site: 

83 Willow Street, Lynn, MA  

The following addendum has been issued to address changes, modifications, and clarifications 
hereby made to the plans and specifications for the above referenced project. 
 

1. Please note, the Agreement details the Work is to be completed within ninety (90) days 
after the start of construction, for each event, respectively. 

2. Page 6, Article 2 - Bidder Certifications. This article states that Massachusetts law requires 
that works on the construction site have no less than 40 hours of OSHA-approved safety 
and health training. Are there any specific OSHA training (e.g., HAZWOPER 40 hour)? 
Other Massachusetts construction projects have required OSHA 10 Construction. Is this 
training required? 

Response: The awarded Contractor shall provide safety qualifications of all personnel 
scheduled to complete the Work. At a minimum, the Contractor’s personnel shall 
maintain proof of OSHA HAZWOPER 40 hour training. 

3. Page 12, Specification A10 – It is noted that the bid provides subsurface and surficial 
utility information to the best extent possible. Sheet 4 of 7 (PDF page 100) shows utilities to 
the north, east, and south of the 83 Willow Street parcel. At the bid walk it was noted that 
a historical utility line may be present in the subsurface at the southern edge of the 83 
Willow Street property (inside the fence). Can any additional information be provided 
about this utility? 

Response: The utility noted during the bid walk is an assumed former service line that has 
since been abandoned. The awarded Contractor is responsible for completing DigSafe 
markout prior to any subsurface work. The Contractor shall be responsible for any 
impacts to any unknown or undocumented utility conflicts and/or impacts. 



 

 

4. Page 13, Specification A11. Is Contractor permitted to bill for and receive payment on a 
monthly percentage of completion basis for base bid items if the completion 
percentages are less than 100 percent (before the 20th of the month)? The RFP states that 
a base bid item must be completed to be billed. 

Response: The awarded Contractor may submit a payment application based on a 
monthly percentage of complete line items but shall be required to coordinate with 
Verdantas on rationale and supporting documentation detailing the percentage 
complete. 

5. Page 16, Bid Item V. The text states that if daylight occurs, the CONTRACTOR shall be 
responsible for application of a neutralizing agent and absorbing material. Can any 
guidance be provided regarding neutralizing agents for enhanced reductive 
dechlorination reagents (not oxidants)? 

Response: The awarded Contractor shall be responsible for designating which 
neutralizing agent and absorbing material is to be used. 

6. Page 18, Form for General Bid, Item III & IV. There are 2 line items for the ISCO injection 
which are for the injection points and for the reagent. 

a. Line Item III: If less than 70 points can be used for injection due to site conditions, 
how will unit pricing be handled between EDIC and the Contractor? 

Response: The awarded Contractor shall be paid on the number of points used 
for injection. If less are used, the awarded Contractor shall be paid based on the 
unit pricing provided in the submitted bid, with a subsequent Change Order 
prepared and authorized detailing the deduct to the total contract sum. 

b. Line Item IV: The chemical reagents (including furnishment and delivery to the 
site) are included in this line item. The estimated quantity for Line Item IV is 12,000 
gallons, which is the diluted ISCO solution. At many injection programs, the actual 
injected volume is different from the design volume based on site conditions. 
Would EDIC consider modifying Line Item IV to be mass of 40% sodium 
permanganate delivered to the site (or injected) instead of gallons of diluted 
oxidant injected? 

Response: The bid form for Line Item IV has been revised to Lump Sum (LS). The 
Bidder is responsible for providing a LS cost to inject 12,000 gallons of diluted ISCO 
solution. The Bidder is responsible for providing details related to the dilution 
methodology and calculations in the space provided on the bid form. 

c. Line Item IV will be compensated on a per gallon basis, as reflected by the 
recorded totalizer volumes per injection point for the entirety of the project. On 
Page 84 and 85, the specifications list that final totalizer readings will be recorded 
at the end of the day and then flush water will be applied. Flush water is 
anticipated to be applied before and after every vertical interval to apply the full 
oxidant volume to each interval (flush oxidant solution from the hoses and the 



 

 

well). The overall totalizer volumes per point will therefore record diluted 
remediation solution and flush water. Can alternative means for recording 
volumes be used to support invoicing? 

Response: Not applicable. See response for 5b. 

7. Page 84, Item K. The text states that “Following completion of the injection, the borehole 
will be backfilled with silica sand as needed.” Backfilling injection boreholes with 
bentonite chips instead of sand can prevent potential surfacing through earlier injection 
points. Can this modification be implemented? 

Response: The awarded Contractor can utilize preferred methodology of backfilling 
injection boreholes, but the submitted bid shall reflect said cost for this methodology. 

8. Page 85, Item I. The text states that “target pressure for injections will be less than five (5) 
to ten (10) pounds per square inch (psi). Previous ISCO injection has experienced higher 
pressure than 10 psi, even at low flow rates (<1 gpm). What is the protocol if injection 
pressure >10 psi is encountered? 

Response: The awarded Contractor shall be responsible for maintaining pressure as to 
not create adverse effects on the injection area and/or safety concerns. The pressures 
noted above were maintained during the prior remedial injection event. 

9. The RFP notes that prevailing wages apply to the work, but the RFP does not specify which 
wage determination(s) apply to the work. Can guidance be provided on what wage 
determination(s) apply to the work? 

Response: A specific prevailing wage schedule from Massachusetts Department of Labor 
Standards (MassDLS) was not provided as part of this work due to the nature of the 
EDIC/Lynn entity designation. The Bidder shall utilize the most current version of the 
Massachusetts Davis Bacon Act Wage Determination for Heavy Construction. It shall be 
the responsibility of the Contractor to confirm most recent wage rates for the duration of 
the project and provide personnel designation for wage confirmation. 

10. Page 50, Article 61, states that “the authorized representatives and agents of the OWNER 
and/or QEP shall be permitted to inspect all work materials, payrolls, records of 
personnel, invoices for materials and other relevant data and records”. Will all invoices 
be required to be submitted for this phase of the project? 

Response: The awarded Contractor shall be required to submit payment requisitions in 
accordance with standard American Institute of Architects (AIA) requirements.  The 
awarded Contractor payment requisition(s) shall include but not be limited to material 
receipts, certified payroll, subcontractor/vendor costs (if applicable), and schedule 
values breakdown detailing total contract line item cost(s), percent complete, and 
applicable retainage. 

Attachments: 
 
Revised Form for General Bid 
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & INDUSTRIAL 
CORPORATION OF LYNN (EDIC/Lynn) 

INVITATION FOR BID #VDT-16196 

FORMER WHYTE’S LAUNDRY 

BROWNFIELDS REMEDIAL INJECTIONS AND 
PERMEABLE REACTIVE BARRIER (PRB)  

 

 

Revised Bid Form 

September 2025 
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & INDUSTRIAL CORPORATION (EDIC) OF LYNN 
Former Whyte’s Laundry  

Brownfields Remedial Injections and Permeable Reactive Barrier (PRB) 
FORM FOR GENERAL BID #VDT-16196 

 
A. The Undersigned proposes to furnish all labor, materials and equipment required for  
Former Whyte’s Laundry – Brownfields Remedial Injections and PRB, located at 83 Willow Street, Lynn, 
Massachusetts, in accordance with the accompanying plans and specifications prepared by ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT & INDUSTRIAL CORPORATION OF LYNN (EDIC/Lynn) for the contract price specified below. The 
Bidder shall assume the proposed tentative remedial schedule for Summer/Fall 2025 for ISCO injections, and 
Summer/Fall 2026 for PRB installation, in the subsequent unit pricing. 
 
B. This bid includes addenda number: ____, ____, ____, ____ 

C. The proposed bid price is: 
 
INSTRUCTIONS:  Provide a “unit price” for each item listed.  Multiple your unit price by the “estimated quantity” to 
give “Item Total”.  Add all Item Totals to give “TOTAL BID PRICE” below 
 
  

BASE BID ITEM EST 
QUANTITIES 

UNIT PRICE ITEM TOTAL 

I. Mobilization and Demobilization (ISCO) 1 Lump Sum  $ 

II. Remobilization and Demobilization (PRB) 1 Lump Sum  $ 

III. Injection Points (ISCO) 70 Points  $ 

IV. Reagent Injection (ISCO) 1 Lump Sum  $ 

V. Enhanced In-Situ Dechlorination Permeable Reactive Barrier 
(PRB) 

1 Lump Sum  $ 

VI. PRB Reagent 6,100 Gallons  $ 

 

ADD ALTERNATE BID ITEM EST 
QUANTITIES 

UNIT PRICE ITEM TOTAL 

I. Neutralizing Agent 50 Gallons  $ 

Please include details related to the dilution methodology and calculations in the space provided: 
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TOTAL BID PRICE: 

 
________________________________________________________Dollars  ($__________________).  
   Bid Amount in Words      Bid Amount in Numbers 
 
D. The undersigned hereby certifies that he is able to furnish labor that can work in harmony with all other 
elements of labor employed or to be employed on the work; that all employees to be employed at the worksite 
will have successfully completed a course in construction safety and health approved by the United States 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration that is at least 10 hours in duration at the time the employee 
begins work and who shall furnish documentation of successful completion of said course with the first certified 
payroll report for each employee; and that he will comply fully with all laws and regulations applicable to awards 
made subject to section 44A.  
 
The undersigned further certifies under the penalties of perjury that this bid is in all respects bona fide, fair and 
made without collusion or fraud with any other person. As used in this subsection the word “person” shall mean 
any natural person, joint venture, partnership, corporation or other business or legal entity. The undersigned 
further certifies under penalty of perjury that the said undersigned is not presently debarred from doing public 
construction work in the commonwealth under the provisions of section twenty-nine F of chapter twenty-nine, or 
any other applicable debarment provisions of any other chapter of the General Laws or any rule or regulation 
promulgated thereunder.  
 
 
 
 
       ______________________________________ 
        NAME OF BIDDER 
 
       ________________________________ 
       SIGNATURE AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING BID 
 
 
DATE:____________________________   ______________________________________ 
        BUSINESS ADDRESS 
 
 
       ___________________________________________ 
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